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SENATOR DEBORAH ORTIZ:  I’d like to welcome you to the Senate Health and Human Services informational hearing today, and the subject of the informational hearing today is “Issues Within Adult Day Health Care.”


Let me thank the public and, hopefully, the members of the committee that will be joining us shortly, as well as the witnesses who have been working very hard on this oversight hearing to address the issues within the Adult Day Health Care, better known by its acronym, ADHC.


The background paper that was prepared with the assistance of the Senate Pro Tem’s Policy Unit offers a very good introduction to the ADHC program and some of the pressing issues that we will discuss in the course of this hearing.


ADHC is a community-based program that provides nursing, various therapies—including physical and speech therapy—meals, transportation, personal care, and other services for low-income elders and younger disabled adults who are at risk of being placed in a nursing home.  ADHC currently serves over 33,000 Californians at approximately 316 licensed ADHC centers across the state.  The mission of ADHC is to delay or defer the placement of individuals who might otherwise go into nursing homes or other more costly forms of care.  There’s a long history accounting for the evolution of the ADHC model, and the timeline handout that is in the packet gives all of us a better understanding of this development.


A recent event that will add yet another milestone to ADHC changes—in December 2003, the federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS (the federal agency), directed our state to submit a waiver proposal by the end of 2004, and that is to restructure the payment system that we have in place as well as a program redesign for ADHC.


This hearing today will provide our committee that oversees this policy area with a better understanding of how the state is going to react to this federal request and what implications this is going to have for the clients, to providers, and the long-term care continuum in the State of California.  As part of this discussion, the committee has also asked witnesses to discuss other issues of concern and critique of the program.


In the context of the waiver, these questions should be probed.  They should be explained and, if possible, answered with new reforms and program changes that will lead to improvements of the programs as well as assure that these programs are stabilized and strong.  These questions will probe the ADHC efficiencies, the reimbursement levels that are currently in place, the patterns of growth throughout the State of California, client assessment, as well as eligibility.  Are we doing it well?  Can we do it better?  Are we really determining in these very precious programs that we have limited resources—are we really asking whether persons who are participating in these programs are indeed eligible for them?  And very importantly, is there appropriate oversight, and what is the need, if any, for coordination among offices and departments involved in the programs?


The agenda is organized to first give members and the audience an overview of the role of ADHC and then a movement into the discussion of the pending waiver.  And again, this is the federal government that has told the State of California to do a number of things to justify the program.  And finally, linked to the waiver discussion, which is the process in which the federal government allows us or tells us not to do or allows us to do some things, there will be a section on very important features and questions regarding the program.


I’d like to inform the speakers that due to the breadth of the issues and the number of witnesses that we have here today, please try to keep your comments within five to seven minutes.  I understand that there may be some of you who need additional time, including Ms. Pat Daley from CMS, and that extra time will be accommodated.  I understand it’s been pre-cleared, so I will have a reminder of who those are that we’ve authorized longer statements.


For all others, the committee assistant will hold up a warning sign at six minutes and a “Please Conclude” sign at the seventh minute.  This will give us at least a few moments between the speakers to engage in questions from the committee if there are any, allowing us to try and complete what is a pretty ambitious agenda within our scheduled timeframe.


Let me thank you ahead of time, and let’s go ahead and begin with the first speaker.  Let me invite and welcome Dr. Kate Wilber with the Center for Long-Term Care Integration.


Members should have a handout.  Please find yourself a comfortable seat.  We do have a handout when the members join us.  I believe you have a PowerPoint with slides as well?  And for the audience, the handouts, I believe, are available in the back of the room.  So, if you haven’t gotten those already, I encourage you to do so.


With that, let’s please begin.


Dr. Wilber?  Thank you.


DR. KATE WILBER:  Good afternoon, Madam Chairperson and members of the audience.  


I’m Kate Wilber, a professor of gerontology at the University of Southern California.  I appreciate the opportunity to talk about Adult Day Health Care, and what I’m going to do is to provide an overview of the program.


As you’ve heard, Adult Day Health Care targets people at risk for high-cost medical care, including skilled nursing, and people at risk of functional decline.  It offers supervision and the opportunity to live at home and still receive an array of services.  It offers respite to caregivers, and it is an important site for the coordination of health and social services.


To illustrate how it works, I’d like to start by introducing you to Mrs. C.  Mrs. C. is somebody who is a real person that I’ve encountered in some of my research, and I find that she offers a number of challenges that illustrate the importance of long-term care services.


She’s a recent widow.  She’s been diagnosed with uncontrolled diabetes and congestive heart failure.  Since the death of her husband, she’s struggled unsuccessfully to pay her bills, prepare her food, keep her apartment clean.  She appears to have increasing difficulty walking.  She hasn’t bathed recently.  Her home is dirty.  She’s socially isolated.  She’s lost the few friends that she had to death.  And recently, she stopped paying the rent.  The landlord is threatening to evict her.  She doesn’t have a working phone.  Her refrigerator is disconnected.  She has no food in the house.  She remembers eating little in recent days, and she has two birds and a dog as her companions.


What I’d like people to do is to imagine that Mrs. C. is your aunt.  Actually, I recently went through this with my aunt and found it’s a good exercise.  You get a call from, perhaps, a neighbor asking you if you can address Mrs. C.’s situation.  So, what are the options?  What can you do within the current context?  Most obviously, people think nursing home placement is an option, and sometimes it is the most appropriate option; but clearly, it’s important to explore other options since older adults almost always want to live at home.  In many cases it’s a less costly option, and she has her pets and other incentives to keep her in her own home.


So, if she stays at home then, you need to explore the service options, and what I have in your handout is what we call “the spider web,” and that’s because that’s what it looks like.  This is a client referral pattern from a community in California, and it shows you the complexity of services and the fact that it’s extremely difficult.  The Institute of Medicine called this system a nightmare to navigate.  It’s clearly a nightmare for a frail, older adult, and it’s actually, clearly, a nightmare for somebody with a Ph.D. in gerontology, I can attest.


A second way to look at it is in this second slide which are the silos of services, and these are services that have different funding sources, different auspices, different regulatory environments.  You’ll see down the middle is this bar, and we have Mrs. C. in the middle of the services in the chasm between medical and social services.  A lot of times there really isn’t good linkage.  Mrs. C. might end up going into the hospital, but she can’t necessarily, without a lot of help, get from there to the home and community-based services that she needs.  For example, it’s hard to get from the hospital to home with In-Home Supportive Services because often those kinds of services don’t speak to each other.


You will notice at the bottom that there are two services that kind of cross-cut the medical and social service model.  One of those is a skilled nursing facility, and the second is Adult Day Health Care.  Adult Day Health Care brings together medical and social services in an integrated context.  And I’m going to talk very briefly in a minute about how it does that and what those services are.


So, Adult Day Health Care looks like a viable option.  Is Mrs. C. eligible to participate?  As you’ve indicated, there are some eligibility requirements.  First of all, she needs to be eighteen or over, and clearly she meets that test.  Adult Day Health Care does serve some different populations in addition to adults over 65.  It serves developmentally disabled, people with HIV/AIDS, and adults with physical or mental disabilities.  


In order to participate in Adult Day Health Care, Mrs. C. will have to have a medical condition that requires treatment or rehab, and clearly, she has several interacting medical conditions.  It needs to be prescribed by a physician.  If she doesn’t have a physician, Adult Day Health Care can arrange for a physician.  She needs to have functional impairments, and as I’ve indicated, she is having trouble bathing, walking, perhaps dressing.  And there needs to be an expectation that Adult Day Health Care will help serve as a preventative or restorative service to maximize her functioning and help her avoid decline and institutionalization.


She needs to, if she’s a Medi-Cal recipient—and I think we can assume that she is Medi-Cal eligible—she will have a specified number of days per week that are authorized based on a six-month individual plan of care.  Those are based on physician orders and her overall needs and treatment authorization.


Assuming that an ADHC is available in her community, what would she get if she were to attend an ADHC?  Well, first of all, this isn’t your child’s day care model.  It’s not a social model.  It’s not supervised babysitting for older adults.  It’s a package of health and therapeutic and social services that are highly individualized to serve people’s needs.


I should also say I’m on the board of St. Barnabas Senior Center.  I just toured their model program and was very excited about what’s going on there.  Very quickly, there are therapeutic activities that are age-appropriate for adults.  And at St. Barnabas, there was sewing and gardening and music and art.  Medical services.  It’s an important site for the delivery of health services.  Nursing.  Personal care help with activities of daily living.  Mental health services; either referrals and then recommended treatments.  Rehab; occupational therapy; physical therapy; and speech.  Occupational therapy based in terms of helping people maximize their function for day-to-day activities.  Social services.  Counseling.  Referrals to various social service entities such as In-Home Supportive Services.  Work with family caregivers to support their work.  Transportation is key.  The service is licensed by Department of Health Services and administered by the Department of Aging.  


As you said in your opening remarks, California is an innovator in Adult Day Health Care.  We started in the early seventies.  It became a permanent program in 1977.  It’s one of the key components for the PACE model.  


The Robert Wood Johnson Foundation just did a survey across the country of adult day services and indicated that California is meeting the needs in about 22 counties.  There are unmet needs in the remaining counties.  So, in the greater scheme of things, California was in better shape than most states but still had some work to do.


I see that my time is up.  Thank you for your attention.  I’d be happy to answer any questions that you have.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


I have a few questions.  There’s much that you’ve gone over that raises some issues, and your last comments intrigue me.  There are only 22 of our, what, 58 counties that have adequate capacity in Adult Day Health Care?


DR. WILBER:  According to the Robert Wood Johnson report.  Now, I should clarify that they looked more broadly than Adult Day Health services.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, that figure could actually be lower than twenty-two.


DR. WILBER:  It could be; although, it was a very well-done national report looking at unmet need, and I think it’s clear across the country there’s a great deal of unmet need.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  It’s not unreasonable, is it, to determine that there’s actually 36 counties that have unmet need out of the 58?


DR. WILBER:  That’s what this report indicated.  And the report, I think, came out a year or so ago, and I understand there has been continued growth.  In fact, St. Barnabas is one of the newly developed programs.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Can you share with us geographically or regionally where those gaps were the greatest?


DR. WILBER:  They broke it down county by county.  One of the things I was struck with is I think the unmet need in L.A. County was very high.  It’s a big county.  And I would be more than happy to provide their information to you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That would be helpful.  It’s probably in the packet, and I haven’t had a chance to glance at it.


Well, that’s kind of alarming because certainly the debate we’re having in California is:  What is the nature of these programs?  Are they necessary?  I think you’ve given a general outline about why they are, of course.  All of us have an Aunt C. or a Mother C. or a Father C. in many instances.  It’s clear that the interaction and mitigating the isolation and having regular, trained observations of the health status of those who participate in the program is essential.  


I’m a big believer in how this is really a cost-saver, but of course, that’s the debate in California right now, that the quality of life as well as allowing persons to be relatively independent for as long as possible are really good things.


Any general comments or highlights that you want to reiterate?


DR. WILBER:  Yes.  One thing that wasn’t in the packet is we tracked growth in nursing homes across the last decade (1991 to 2000)—and it’s not in your packet—but it’s a relatively flat line.  We did this at the Center for Long-Term Care Integration.  The growth in potential consumers is quite a steep growth, and the growth in home and community-based care is a steep growth.  So, I think that part of what we’re seeing in California is very little growth in nursing facilities as a result of these other services being available.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I don’t know if this is your chart, but the background paper that was in the packet—and I don’t know if you had a chance to review that—there are a couple of areas in which they demonstrate tables.  It’s the background paper for the committee, and it’s page 3.  Hopefully, that will be shared with you.  It asks two critical questions.  One is:  How fast is the Adult Day Health Care program growing and why?  And Table 1 shows “ADHC Caseload Growth.”  That’s page 3.  And we see a growth change of 548 percent in Los Angeles County, and then, in the second table we see fund expenditures per case which indicate a 1,004 percent increase in cost per case in Los Angeles County.  


How do you explain the discrepancy in the statewide average of percentage growth as well as cost per case at 395 percent?  Of course, you’ve seen growth in cost per case statewide, but you see almost three times as much in the cost per case in L.A. County, and you see the greatest caseload growth in L.A. County.  Yet, your observations are that L.A. County, or at least the Robert Wood Johnson’s survey suggests that L.A. County is still significantly underserved.


DR. WILBER:  I guess I would have a couple of comments.  One is that probably L.A. County starts with high unmet need.  The other is looking at the growth curve here, which seems to be highest most recently.  


The Robert Wood Johnson report came out in 2003 based on surveys, but it may be that L.A. County has, to some extent, caught up with that unmet need.  I can go back and check when they collected their data and how it corresponds to the increase here.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, the cost per case in L.A. County versus statewide cost per case, it is a bit higher in L.A.  I’m trying to understand the statewide cost and then statewide cost per case figure and then the L.A. County cost per case figure.  I mean, you see a relatively higher cost, slightly higher cost, in L.A. County, and you see the highest growth every year, it looks to me.  On average the 1,004 percent increase was through 2002 versus elsewhere in the state where you’ve seen high growth areas elsewhere in the state but you haven’t seen the caseload growth, which is, to me, interesting.  I don’t know what that suggests.


Well, maybe you can look at that and give us some insight.  I know it’s not your data, but certainly one of the debates for the State of California, having to reconcile this federal waiver, is around these numbers that I think probably make a compelling case for the need.  The question is:  How do we explain them?


Do the demographic patterns of those who are aging match the increased demand for ADHC services that we’re witnessing currently, particularly in the L.A. county area?  I mean, can that be explained by more older people in L.A. versus elsewhere in the state?


DR. WILBER:  You’re asking if there’s more increase in older adults in L.A. County?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Do the demographic patterns of the aging match that increased demand for ADHC services that we’re currently observing across the state but particularly within the L.A. area?


DR. WILBER:  I would say that probably what you’re seeing is a catch-up and addressing unmet needs over time.  We’ve had a lot of unmet need which has been increasingly met over the last several years.  So, it seems to me that that’s part of what we’re seeing here, but I’d certainly have to go back and look at the numbers.


I would say, too, in our data we have linked Medicare and Medicaid data.  We’ve seen tremendous growth from ’96 to 2001.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  All throughout the state or particularly in L.A.?


DR. WILBER:  We don’t have L.A. County—but throughout the state.  We have 18 counties.  L.A. County’s not one of them.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Do you see the potential for integrated case management to be a reality in the near future where there’s a one-stop model or a team approach to the case management of the participants in the program?


DR. WILBER:  I think no matter how integrated a service system we have, we need integrated case management to accompany it.  And certainly even in the PACE program, you’ll never have something comprehensive enough to link everything, and maybe we shouldn’t.  There’s too much diversity and complexity.  So, I think you’ll always need to have a case management component to help people maximize their use of services and to have an individualized care plan and to link the various providers and help them communicate around the care plan.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And let me ask—in your assessment, how important is the bundled service benefit to the ability of the ADHC centers to function well on behalf of its clients?  I assume that it’s very important, but can you tell me how important?


DR. WILBER:  I don’t really feel comfortable answering that.  I think some of the later speakers would be more well-versed in that question.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.


I appreciate your presentation; it’s thorough.  I think that there will probably be other members who join us.  Hopefully, you’ll stick around, and we can ask more questions.


But thank you for your presentation.


DR. WILBER:  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And please stay nearby so we can take from your expertise.  I appreciate it.


We now have the second speaker on this panel, which is:  What is ADHC and what is its proper role?  We have Robert Miller and Opal Miller who are care recipient and caregiver from Yolo County.


Sergeants, let’s see if we can make this easier.  We’ve actually done a better job, believe it or not, on trying to make this accessible.  


MS. DAWN MYERS PURKEY:  Good afternoon.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Welcome.


MS. MYERS PURKEY:  Thank you very much.


My name’s Dawn Myers Purkey.  I’m the program director at Yolo Adult Day Health Center.  I’ve been there for the past eight years.  


Our county’s a rural county, so we have the challenge of providing services to many of the small communities that exist, and we do a really good job at that.  We hit Knights Landing and Winters, West Sac, Woodland, Davis, and all the little towns in between have access to Adult Day Health because of the need.


We serve about 45 to 50 clients a day.  On average, our clients come to us with a minimum of three chronic medical diagnoses, and that would include congestive heart failure, Alzheimer’s, Parkinson’s, post-stroke, multiple sclerosis, diabetes; any number of very serious conditions that often result in repeated ER visits, hospitalizations, and skilled nursing facilities.  And what we do a really fantastic job is providing all of the preventative monitoring and assistance to the families to ensure that those are greatly reduced, if not in many cases completely avoided, over long periods of time.


I have with me a family that’s been using the services of our program, and our program has been in existence for twenty years now, since our anniversary.  What they represent is a very typical situation of an aging caregiver caring for a frail adult in the family.


So, first of all, on my left, I’d like to introduce this gentleman.


MR. ROBERT MILLER:  My name is Bobby—Robert Miller.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Welcome.


MR. MILLER:  Thank you.


MS. MYERS PURKEY:  And with Bobby is his mother, Opal.  Opal is very nervous, so she has prepared some words.  But I think Opal very much shows the kind of collaboration that a family and a center working together, the difference that is able to be made both in the quality of Bobby’s life and also in the quality of Opal’s life as well.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Opal, let me assure you, we’re here to learn.  You know more than we do, so we really welcome your being here to share with us.


MRS. OPAL MILLER:  Well, I’ve had 64½ years of this.  He was born in 1939, and he’ll be 65 soon.  I’m 83.  I’ll be 84 in November.  So, I’ve had a lifetime of it.  He was injured at birth.  They called it in those days spastic paralysis, but now it’s cerebral palsy, they say.  He is retarded and paralyzed on his right side.  He has to walk with a walker.  His dad lived until 1978 and died, so I’ve been the lone provider for him since then—the caretaker.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Over twenty-five years.


MRS. MILLER:  Yes.  His dad died in June of ’78.  So, it’s been just he and me, and it’s getting a little bit hard now.  I have macular degeneration in one eye, and one hand is worn out.  I can’t use it much.  


But I do have to monitor everything for him.  And he’s had diabetes since he was twenty years of age.  It started out with one shot a day, and now it’s four shots a day.  I have to check his blood and give him shots.  The day care is able to do it for me at noon for him on weekdays.  They do it and give him his shot, but the other three times I have to, and then on holidays I have to do it four times a day.  I monitor his food intake.  So far he doesn’t have any complications of anything that diabetes causes.  He went straight on to diabetes when he was twenty years of age.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That speaks to your vigilant care.


MRS. MILLER:  We were to the doctor this morning.  He said, You’ve done a good job of monitoring his food.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That’s incredible.


MRS. MILLER:  Of course, we live by the clock.  We get up at five o’clock of a morning to be able to get his first shot and his breakfast by six.  Then we have a lady that the day care. . . . she was working at the day care.  She decided she would come and bathe him.  They thought I should have someone to bathe him—put him in the shower—because I let him fall a couple of times.  So, now she comes at seven o’clock and bathes him and dresses him for me and everything.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And we don’t want you falling either.


MRS. MILLER:  No.  At my age I have to be careful.  


The day care has been wonderful.  After his dad died, there was two or three years there before the day care opened.  And then, he got to go there in June after it opened, I think, in February or something.  He’s been going there longer than any other participant.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Wonderful.


MR. MILLER:  Eighty-four.


MRS. MILLER:  What?


MR. MILLER:  Eighty-four.


MRS. MILLER:  Eighty-four.  June of ’84.


MR. MILLER:  Twenty years.


MRS. MILLER:  He is slightly retarded and paralyzed . . .


SENATOR ORTIZ:  He’s got those dates down.


MRS. MILLER:  . . . and he has to wear a brace and a walker and all of that.  And I don’t ever leave him with anybody.  He’s never alone.  In his whole life, he’s never been alone.  And I have to assist him now when he gets up from his chair to go to the dinner table or go to bed and hold on to him so he doesn’t fall.  He can’t get up by himself, and I can’t get him up.  


Back in the olden days, in the middle of the night when I’d get up and go in and check on him, he’d be in an insulin reaction, but now they have the good insulin—the Lantus.  It’s twenty-four-hour and it’s delayed acting.  I don’t have to do that, but I do get up every night in the middle of the night and go and check on him to be sure he’s okay; covered up and all of that.  


I just don’t know what we would do without the day care now because they’ve been so helpful to me.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Can you share with us, Mrs. Miller, how many days a week he’s able to go to day care?


MRS. MILLER:  He goes five days a week now.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And, on average, how many hours?


MRS. MILLER:  I drive him over at nine and pick him up at two.  I think he’s supposed to be there at least four hours, isn’t he?


MS. MYERS PURKEY:  That’s right.


MRS. MILLER:  But I take him early so I can get back and get on the things I have to do the rest of the time.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Absolutely.


MRS. MILLER:  Because I do all the laundry and all the cooking.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, what kinds of activities have you seen that have been really helpful that occur at the center?


MRS. MILLER:  Well, he gets therapy every day—physical therapy—and exercise and things.  That would be hard for me to do for him.  And then, the main thing with Bobby when he was first born and we knew he was going to be retarded, he would never have a social life.  He has more friends than I do.  Everybody at the day care think he’s wonderful.  When I pick him up in the afternoon, there’s lot of other participants who will say goodbye to him because they like him so well.  He’s really likable.  He smiles all the time.  Very cooperative with whatever you want him to do.  


But I just don’t know what. . . . you know, as you get older, you have more medical problems yourself, and I don’t want to take him and leave him in the car alone while I go into the doctor’s office or the dental office.  So, I arrange my appointments while he’s at day care.  I can take care of my things.


SENATOR WESLEY CHESBRO:  Just the break for you so that you can have some time.


MRS. MILLER:  Oh, yes.  And by the end of the day I’m worn out.  I have to monitor his food intake.  I keep him on a good schedule, I guess.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And that’s essential to diabetes.


MRS. MILLER:  Uh-huh.  But anyway, he has been a wonder to raise; you know, from the time he was born.  He was injured at birth, so we knew he would be this way and we’d have to give our life to him.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Gifts come in strange ways.


MRS. MILLER:  Like I say, if we go places in the car, if I take him to the mall, I take the wheelchair out and put him in the wheelchair and let him roll around in there, and he sees people in there that I don’t even know.  I don’t have time for friends or neighbors.  I don’t go to their house and they don’t come to mine because I’m busy.  I have to keep things going for him.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me take a moment to introduce my colleague, Senator Wesley Chesbro, who’s been really great in this area, and see if he has other questions or comments of Bobby or of Mrs. Miller.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  I just really appreciate the chance to hear your story.  You know, we in the Capitol deal with these programs on paper and don’t always see the human face of it, and it’s always good to have folks come here and remind us.  Of course, we’ve all had experiences in our own lives that connect to these different issues, but sometimes you get so busy here with all of the decision-making that’s on paper that you need reminders, and you’ve done a really good job by telling your story here.  Appreciate it.


MRS. MILLER:  Thank you.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


MRS. MILLER:  I think if it hadn’t been for the day care, I would have had to put him in a nursing home or something.  Physically, I couldn’t have managed him.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And the quality of his life and the enrichment it brings your life, as difficult as it is.


MRS. MILLER:  It’s the most wonderful place in the world.  If you go there and visit sometime, you’ll realize that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’ve been joined by Senator Kuehl, who’s also part of our committee, and see whether she has any questions for Mrs. Miller.


SENATOR SHEILA KUEHL:  No.  Thank you.  I’m sorry that I just got here.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  They all watch in their office until I start, and then they’re very good about joining us.


Are there any final comments anyone would like to make?


MS. MYERS PURKEY:  Just that I didn’t mention our program is at capacity.  And just to tag on to Dr. Wilber’s comments, in Yolo County—and I think we’re fairly typical—there’s a great deal of unmet need in and of Adult Day Health services.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Do you have a waiting list?


MS. MYERS PURKEY:  We do.  And clients can wait up to three months to get into the program, and unfortunately, sometimes those are the critical three months that make the difference of whether they’re still able to take advantage of the services when we have an opening.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Where’s the center located?


MS. MYERS PURKEY:  It’s located in Woodland.  Yolo County.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, if somebody is coming from Winters, how do you arrange transportation?


MS. MYERS PURKEY:  We have lift buses.  We have three lift buses and two smaller vans that go out each morning and bring in about 48 people a day.  So, we’re able to accommodate wheelchairs and folks that can’t manage the steps on the lift.  There’s very few people who don’t come to the center that would. . . . I mean, most people have trouble getting out of their home, and they’re very homebound, and the lift bus makes that possible.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  What is your average capacity at the center?


MS. MYERS PURKEY:  Our average daily attendance is currently 47.3.  We serve about 48 a day.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And your funding mechanisms are a combination of—? 


MS. MYERS PURKEY:  More than 75 percent are low income, and so, Medi-Cal reimburses for their costs; and then the other 25 percent are through funding through grants, community support.  We do a lot of fundraising within Yolo County, and we’re also an Alzheimer’s Day Care Resource Center.  So, we have a specialized dementia program for clients who have a dementia.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, thank you so much for giving us a peek inside one of the models.  I appreciate everyone coming forward.  Thank you, Bobby, and thank you, Mrs. Miller.


MRS. MILLER:  He understands everything, even though he is retarded.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Oh, he sure does.


MRS. MILLER:  But not severely.  I say God was good to me.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  He seems pretty on top of it to me.  Thank you so much.  I do appreciate it.


Let me just ask all of the speakers that are going to participate in the second panel to feel free to come forward to the table up here so we don’t have to maneuver that.  The second panel’s topic is the overview of the waiver (the federal waiver) and prospective policy issues in the Adult Day Health centers.  The topic is proposals and timelines of the waiver, changes in the assessment process, and infrastructure considerations.


So, we have Pat Daley joining us—and everyone will introduce themselves again with your titles—Stan Rosenstein, as well as Lydia Missaelides.


Welcome.  I think, Pat, you’re billed to go first.  Thank you for coming.


MS. PAT DALEY:  Good afternoon, committee members, and thank you for inviting me to participate in the hearing today.


My name is Pat Daley, and I’m manager of the State Services Branch in the Division of Medicaid and Children’s Health in the San Francisco regional office of the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services.  I’m here to provide information on federal requirements for Medicaid reimbursement for Adult Day Health Care center services.


Since at least 1982, the California Medicaid State Plan has included ADHC as a service under two categories.  First, hospital outpatient department services and organized outpatient clinic services; and rehabilitation services.  The state plan does not describe the specific components of an ADHC nor does it contain the specific reimbursement methodology.  Rather, it refers to state regulations for description of both.


It recently came to CMS’s attention that there was a problem with federal funding of ADHC services as they’re being provided in California.  And the problem is the types of services provided and the bundling of the reimbursement rate.


In response to questions from CMS, the state described ADHC as rehabilitative benefits consisting of both state plan and non-state plan services and reimbursed at a bundled rate which is equal to the ninetieth percentile of the Nursing Facility A rate for a minimum of four hours a day.


In a letter dated December 11th of 2003, which you had referred to earlier, CMS advised the Department of Health Services that there’s no state plan authority for providing the full range of ADHC services as they’re currently structured.  And so, we presented . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let me interrupt you there because I think that’s important, and we’re obviously going to ask Mr. Rosenstein to address that.  So, if you could reiterate the duration.  How long has there been a request from CMS for the state to provide, what it sounds like, a more detailed plan or any plan?


MS. DALEY:  Well, it started last year when we were looking into a state plan amendment, and then it became evident that what was in the state plan was not something that we should be reimbursing the way it was.  So, December 11th, we sent the state a letter saying that there was a problem, and at that point we offered two options for how to correct the problem.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Had there been direction given prior to that as to what would be a permissible or permitted benefit?  I mean, was it the first time California was made aware that they were apparently out of compliance?


MS. DALEY:  Well, we had been discussing it, but we had been discussing it with the state in several different contexts, but we hadn’t come out in writing and said there is a problem here and it needs to be changed.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  I interrupted you, so please continue.  I just wanted to get a sense of the timeline when all of this was unfolding.  But please continue.


MS. DALEY:  And so, we presented two options for correcting it, and again, one option is to keep the ADHC in the state plan.  And to do this, what the state would have to do is identify the elements for which Medicaid could pay and the ones they couldn’t pay for and then develop a reimbursement methodology to include the ones that could be in the state plan and to exclude the other ones.  And the elements that can be included are those found in the definition of “medical assistance.”  Actually, it’s in Section 1905(a) of the Social Security Act, and those include physician services, skilled nursing services, physical therapy, et cetera.  The things that you would normally think of as medical services.  The things that can’t be included are social services, recreational services, meals, things like that, because they’re not medical assistance in general.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Which would be many of the services that fall under the category of socialization, interaction . . .


MS. DALEY:  Right.  But the other option. . . . well, going back to keeping it in the state plan, the state would have to change both the services and the reimbursement methodology for those services, and the methodology would have to be both reasonable and tied to the cost of services.  According to the Social Security Act, the payments would have to be consistent with efficiency, economy, and quality of care.  I mean, just general reimbursement principles.  


But the second option that CMS presented—I think is the one that has gotten the most attention—is the home and community-based waiver.  That’s under Section 1915(c) authority.  This is the Medicaid program alternative to providing long-term care in an institutional setting.  So, that is the alternative for long-term care.  And states have the flexibility to design HCBS waiver programs to meet the specific needs of defined groups.  They have the flexibility regarding the number of people served under a single waiver.  The geographic area is covered as well as the number of programs offered in the state.  And there are no specific services that must be offered in an HCBS waiver program.


The Social Security Act lists seven services that may be provided, and in addition to Adult Day Health Care, they’re case management, homemaker services, home health aide services, personal care services, respite care, and habilitation.  Habilitation refers to services designed to assist individuals to acquire, retain, or improve skills needed to remain in the community.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That list that you just went through under the sub (c) other waiver, do we have a copy of that?


MS. DALEY:  I have copies of that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Great.  Let’s go ahead and have the sergeants share that with us because that would help guide this part of the discussion, I think.


MS. DALEY:  It does get pretty technical.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You’re welcome to continue.


MS. DALEY:  And other services can be provided under an HCBS waiver as long as the services are necessary to avoid institutionalization and the cost of the waiver is no more than that of institutional care.


These additional services can be services that are outside the definition of medical assistance.  So, that’s where the other services we’re talking about come in.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And 1915(b) is the medical services, and then the (c) is the other.


MS. DALEY:  Nineteen fifteen (c) is HCBS waivers, and the 1905(a) is the list of the services that qualify as medical assistance.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.


MS. DALEY:  When requesting an HCBS waiver, states have to specify which Medicaid requirements they want waived.  It could be statewide operation of the waiver program.  It could be just in parts of the state.  It could be the income and resource rules for the medically needy, or it could be comparability of services.  And comparability of services means that the services that are available to any individual are equal in amount, duration, and scope to all individuals within broad groups.  So, you could give more services to people in an HCBS waiver than you give in the regular Medicaid program.  And the waiver request must specify the target group for the services, and the waivers can serve the following target groups or any subgroup:  the aged and disabled, or both, the mentally retired or developmentally disabled, or both, or the mentally ill.


Now, a key point is HCBS waivers must be targeted to persons meeting an institutional level of care as defined as a hospital, nursing facility, or intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded.  In fact, avoiding institutionalization is the key element of an HCBS waiver.  So, CMS requires that the states give an assurance that this requirement is met.


Each person in the waiver must be evaluated to determine if there’s a reasonable indication that he or she might need the level of care for the waiver program in the near future unless they get the home and community-based services.  And the “near future” is defined as a month or less.  So, it can’t be a situation where the person, if they didn’t get the services in five years, might need an institutional level of care.  Our regulations specify it has to be at a month or less.


Waiver requests must include both the instrument and the process that will be used to determine if a potential waiver participant meets this level-of-care requirement.  It could be identical to the form that’s used for admission to a hospital or a nursing facility or ICF/MR, or states could come up with a different instrument.  However, if it does differ from the ones that are used for regular institutionalization, the state has to explain why and provide an assurance that the form that’s used is valid, and it’ll have comparable findings in terms of the person does meet an institutional level of care.


Now, I want to mention a little bit about bundling.  The waiver request must describe the services furnished so that each service is separately defined, and CMS will allow combined service definitions (which we call “bundling”) when this will permit more efficient delivery of services and won’t compromise their access to care or free choice of providers.  What we wouldn’t allow, as an example, is having skilled services bundled with unskilled services.


In addition, states must document and assure that necessary safeguards are in place to protect the health and welfare of waiver participants, and they must provide adequate and reasonable provider standards to meet the needs of the target population and ensure that services are provided pursuant to a plan of care for each person.  These are general waiver rules.


Now, CMS’s website contains a wealth of information about the requirements for HCBS waivers, including how to obtain approval and a summary of all approved HCBS waivers nationwide.  And that information is located at www.cms.hhs.gov/medicaid/1915c.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Hopefully, that’s somewhere in your handout.


MS. DALEY:  Yes, it is.  All the citations.


CMS works closely with the states to provide any technical assistance necessary to develop waiver requests, and we have a mutual goal to assure adequate access to quality and cost-effective healthcare for the beneficiaries.


Thank you for the opportunity to share CMS’s position, and I welcome any questions you may have.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.  I do appreciate your thorough presentation.  I actually would like to encourage my colleagues, if they have specific questions, to please feel free to raise those questions now.  I’m actually going to hold off on questions because I’m sure Stan’s going to put it all in perspective from what we have to contend with, but others may want to weigh in now.


Senator Kuehl or Chesbro?


Okay.  Stan, make sense of all this and tell us how it affects California.


MR. STAN ROSENSTEIN:  Stan Rosenstein, Department of Health Services, Medi-Cal Program.  I’ll make some real brief introduction comments and get to the meat of the waiver question.


As people have already said, ADHCs have been a state plan service for twenty-plus years.  They do provide an excellent alternative to institutional care for the elderly and disabled.  They divert people from being in nursing homes, and we do consider them a key part of our continuum of care.  They are a program that pays very well relative to Medi-Cal standards.  The current rate is $69.58.  That’s based on a rate that is 90 percent of 24-hour nursing facility care.  That’s a rate that was set on a court action.  It is a bundled rate—one day’s rate.  The rate pays for the one-day service:  four hours plus a meal.  


There is a large increase, as I think it pointed out in your data, in terms of the amount of facilities and the amount paid.  In 1999/2000, we paid $80 million for 157 centers—51 percent in L.A.—and in ’01/’02, we paid $177 million—64 percent in L.A.—and in 2002/03, we paid $237 million—66 percent of the payments in L.A.  So, we went from 51 percent of the program being in L.A. to 66 percent.  Now, we do think there are reasons for that beyond pent-up need.  We’ll talk later about the concerns.


The governor’s budget proposed a moratorium on enrollment of new ADHCs and unbundling of the rates.  I won’t spend any time on the budget proposal because this isn’t the Budget Committee.


We did not propose at that time nor seek. . . . actually, we’ve never sought to take this program to a waiver.  We did receive late in the budget process on December 11th a letter from CMS, which Pat mentioned, that said we had to move to a waiver process.  At that point we began a process of interacting with the stakeholders and shortly thereafter with legislative staff, advising them that the situation on ADHCs was changing because of this waiver.  We started what we considered to be a very rational, deliberative process to move to a waiver.  


And the reason we chose a waiver versus the other option—which is the state plan benefit—is if you look at. . . . this is a very nice chart that was handed out, the “Silos of Care” chart.  And if you look at that, if you’re going to the state plan, if you look at that dividing line, by and large the medical services are all you can provide under a state plan.  So, if we went to the state plan option, we would have to drop all of the social services that are provided currently by ADHCs, and I don’t think anybody wants to do that.  So, the only way to keep this integration that’s really nicely described in this chart is in a 1915 waiver.  When Pat talked about two options, we didn’t go down to the state plan option because I don’t think people would have liked the results, and we’d have lost a lot of services.


What really accelerated this was in March 2003, we got a call and then some electronic emails (which we’ve shared with various people) from CMS and from the Baltimore people basically telling us if we did not move this program to a waiver expeditiously, they were going to pull our federal funding effective September of 2003.  What the federal government does is they give us quarterly grants of funding, and when they don’t like what we’re doing, they pull the money out of the grant.  We got a call at first that they were going to stop our funding.  We negotiated with the federal government so they didn’t stop the funding last April on the condition that we do move to a waiver and we submit a waiver document to the federal government by January 1st of this year.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, between March and December of ’03, the discussions had begun and increased and escalated on this discussion about the waiver and the 1915(c) shoe-horning, in some respects, of our much fuller services into that provision. 


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Right.  We started in January on a deliberative process—or started in December—and briefed everybody—you know, legislative staff—in January.  And we thought, frankly, we had time.  What happened was, in the end of March, CMS informed us that if we didn’t have statutory change this session and a waiver to them by the end of the calendar year, they were going to pull our funding for the program.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And how much is that funding that was at risk?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  It would have been a portion.  We never got to the exact amount of how much; whether they would have pulled all the funding or just part of the funding.  Pat could probably talk about how much they would have pulled.  But our problem is, once the federal government tells you you can’t claim, you can’t claim, and we don’t have the ability to run a state-only program under the Medi-Cal where it’s a federally matched program.


I mean, they were going to pull the funding to send us a message, and I said, You don’t need to pull the funding to send us a message.  We got your message.  Pat was part of these calls and can talk about that too.  


So, they have agreed to hold off on the deferral, assuming we address the waiver issue in this legislative session and we submit a waiver by the end of the calendar year.  We have dedicated our staff to working on that waiver.  I have one of our top people working on it.  They’ve had numerous calls with CMS.  CMS has been helpful in describing the rules.  We’ve offered to the association to have them participate, to the extent that CMS will allow them, in calls so they can be a part of it.  Our staff are contacting and working with the association to try to get through this waiver process.


Our desire was to take the program as is and move it to the waiver as much as we could.  As Pat has described, we’re not going to be able to do that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Where are the obvious areas?  I mean, are there some bright lines?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Yes, there’s very obvious areas.  The rate issue—right now we pay a bundled rate.  We have proposed to eliminate that.  That was certainly going to be up for discussion in the Legislature.  But CMS is saying, You have to unbundle it.


And then the next step is not only do we have to unbundle it—I don’t know if you’re familiar with the national requirements to go to HIPPA, and they have national codes—but they’re requiring us to go to the national codes for ADHCs.  Those codes were effective last October, so there’s a legal requirement.  It’s a reasonable requirement, but we haven’t . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Which we’re the curve on HIPPA.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  We’re behind the curve.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  We’ve been behind for three years now.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Right.  And they’re saying, For a new waiver service, you’ve got to be compliant with federal law.  Not an unreasonable request, but it’s  a . . . 


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Unreasonable probably that we haven’t.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  But it’s specific in change to the providers.  It makes the unbundling more difficult for providers.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But I thought I recall an exception for the bundling or an opportunity to maintain bundling.  Maybe I just heard incorrectly or understood incorrectly the opportunity to do some bundling if you can demonstrate that there’s a benefit.


MS. DALEY:  Right.  Right now there is one rate, and at the very least, it needs to be broken out between skilled and unskilled—at the very least.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Our intent was to try to move as much of the current program as is into a waiver so that we can maintain our funding.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  That would be a logical thing so we don’t lose ground.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Other big issues that are controversial issues is all 1915 waivers have caps on expenditures; so, we have to set a cap on this program.  All of our home and community-based waivers now have capped.  Typically, they’re capped by the number of beneficiaries.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  But the caseload cap.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  There’s a caseload cap now.  I mean, one of the options we’re looking at is do we do a caseload cap or do we do a provider cap?  But I think all 1915(c) waivers by federal law have a cap.


Probably the biggest issue is what is the criteria for coverage?  Again, Pat mentioned somebody has to be at risk of going into a nursing facility the next month.  That’s not our current criteria for allowing people to be in ADHCs.  So, we estimate it could be up to 40 percent of the people who are getting coverage today who may not qualify under that.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Forty percent of the—what’s the total number?—33,000 Californians who are accessing and utilizing ADHC?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Could potentially lose it on this one issue.  That’s correct.  It’s a . . . [inaudible.]


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Yes.  Especially if the data suggests we’re underserving throughout the state but particularly in places like L.A.  I’m sure that’s debatable, but I mean, it’s further pent-up unmet need.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Right.  And I would point this out:  that this is probably the most significant issue.


Another issue which I think will not be as big of an issue is cost neutrality.  Right now at the state plan service, we are paying under the federal entitlement the state entitlement.  When you go to cost neutrality, you can’t pay more than what it would cost to put somebody in a nursing facility.  On some of our waivers now we struggle with meeting cost neutrality on our nursing facility waiver.  We’ve been spending quite a bit of time with the federal government:  Is that waiver   cost-neutral or not?  This will require the cost neutrality controls in the program expenditures that may force expenditures down.  It does provide a level of expenditure reduction that doesn’t occur in overall Medicaid entitlement where if you can provide a service, you can pay for a service.


We are very committed to meeting the federal timeframes.  We don’t think we have any option.  We have been talking to staff about the need for legislation on this issue.  In order for us to move the program to a waiver, we have to have state law changed.  We have committed to work very closely with the association and legislative staff on this.  We’ve made offers to the association—again, to the extent that the federal government will allow us—to have them participate in the waiver discussions.  We certainly want to do this in a cooperative and collaborative manner.  It is a very, very difficult change and, unfortunately, one that we’re going to have to do in a very, very fast timeframe because we really feel we’re left with no choice.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  So, where is the state in terms of that fast timeline?  Is it fair to say you’re 70 percent done with our waiver request?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  We are putting the concepts in.  We’re looking at what statutory requirements.  We’ve not put paper to pen yet on writing the waiver document because the key step will be to get statutory approval to do a waiver by the end of session, at least.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, time’s running out.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Yes.  


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And you’ve been working on this since March of last year?  Over a year?  Or you’ve known since March.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  No.  We started working on this in earnest March of this year.  We received the letter December 11th of 2003.  We started working at it at a methodical but not number one priority basis, and then March 30, 2004, just a couple of months ago, two months ago, we started working heavily on this.  We’ve generated a lot of information.  We can meet the schedule.  The hard part of the schedule is going to be statutory authority to do the waiver because we’ve got all these issues that are out there that need to come to closure.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Interesting.  Well, maybe we’ll get some compassion from CMS to allow us to get not a lot more time, but it would be helpful to determine whether there’s going to be a little bit of leeway in working with California, given our unique circumstances and changes in administration and unique demographic trends and such.  


Are you, Ms. Daley, able at all to indicate whether there’s some time to work with us and allow us for that timeline on the statutory language—to be a bit further out?


MS. DALEY:  Well, we’re going to work as close as we can and as quickly as we can.  And the reason why the decision was made to address a deferral of funds was because the state advised us that their timeline for addressing this wouldn’t be. . . . I don’t remember the exact timing, but it wasn’t until next spring that there would be significant movement, and then it would take time to implement, et cetera.  And so, that was a concern.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Is that true, Mr. Rosenstein?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  That’s right.  We had originally planned on a spring implementation.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Spring of ’04?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Oh-five.  We had planned on, I think it was, April implementation of the waiver, and what CMS has done is two things:  accelerated it to January 1 and really forced the need to have legislation this year.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Does that complete your presentation, Mr. Rosenstein?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Yes, it does.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I don’t know if other members want to ask questions now.  We have one other speaker. 


SENATOR CHESBRO:  I just want to say that the providers have been, at least in my budget subcommittee, very constructive in terms of wanting to try to help figure these kinds of problems out.  And so, I’m very anxious to hear what they have to say in terms of recommendations as well as the department’s response.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  Before we hear from Ms. Missaelides, let me ask a question of Ms. Daley then.


Has any other state been asked to convert ADHC from an optional benefit to a waiver?


MS. DALEY:  Well, when this came up, we researched to see. . . . well, it came as a surprise to us that it was a problem because it’s been in the state plan since 1982.  We went back to that state plan and didn’t see any indications that it was a problem.  I understand it’s been in place even before 1982.  That’s the earliest I could find it in the files.  I was very surprised to find that and so did research and checked with our policy staff in central office.  The thing is, it is in various state plans nationwide, but it’s under state plan not including services that are not state plan services.  ADHC can be in a state plan as long as it’s only authorized medical services.  So, if you’ve got ADHC in a state plan—and I believe it is in five different state plans—the only things that are supposed to be provided are regular state plan services:  nursing services, doctor services, rehab, things like that.  Not things that are non-medical.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And I think that “non-medical” is the “long-term care in institutional setting” category?  Is that correct?


MS. DALEY:  Say that again?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  The non-medical part of our state plan that has been in operation for some time, I mean, I think it would be fair for California to operate and assume that that was a permissible expenditure and funding.  Did we not fully convey that to CMS?  How is it that one didn’t say years ago that these non-medical services are not permitted?


MS. DALEY:  Very good question.  The state plan is supposed to stand on its own, and I can’t speak to what was done twenty years ago in terms of the way the plans were documented, but in things we approve today, it has to have the exact services in the state plan and the exact payment methodology.  And in this instance, for both services and the payment methodology, it referred to state regulations.  So, over a period of time, I don’t know if it was an oversight, whatever, but whenever CMS finds a situation in any state where we find out that something was approved incorrectly, we do go back and try to fix it.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  My goodness, though.  If the state referenced our regs, we assume that that was authorized or approved if it continued to be funded for all those years.


MS. DALEY:  Right.  I agree.  And it has been funded.  It has been funded.  And it was a surprise that it wasn’t the way it should have been.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I feel like California ought not to be the one getting the penalty, quite frankly, if it’s been acquiesced and agreed to and incorporated by reference and the regs were there and twenty years later just say, Hmm, we didn’t know that your regs were a non-medical part of your ADHC services.


MS. DALEY:  I agree.  I agree.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Okay.  I’ll be the only one sort of confused for a bit.  Maybe Ms. Missaelides will walk us through and clarify some of this.


Thank you.


Welcome, Lydia.


MS. LYDIA MISSAELIDES:  Thank you.  It’s my pleasure to be here.


This is one month’s worth of waiver work.  So, I hate to see what this will look like after six months.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Let’s hope it’s not more than six months.


MS. MISSAELIDES:  I do want to thank you for holding this oversight hearing.  Obviously, as you can tell already, this is a “policy and an operational and a future of California’s long-term care system” issue that is going to resonate for the next generation.  I think our primary concern right now—we have capitulated to the fact that this is going to need to happen.  I don’t think there’s a way to avoid it unless this committee, in its wisdom, has some ideas that I have not thought of yet.  But it’s, perhaps, symmetry, perhaps ironic, that twenty-five years has elapsed since the time the Adult Day Health Care program was converted from an 1115 demonstration waiver to an optional benefit, and here we are twenty-five years later talking about converting it back to a waiver.  So, to us it does feel like a step backwards.


But having said that, we appreciate the opportunity to work with Stan.  He’s extended staff to us and has been very generous in including us in how we might shape this for the future.  We have initiated conversations with CMS, and I was happy to meet Ms. Daley today.  We have some appointments next week with Mr. Flick from Region IX, and we have been invited to participate on a conference call as soon as I prepare an agenda and we have some more specific questions.  So, we greatly appreciate that.


We feel the waiver does create some opportunities for reform, as particularly, Mr. Chesbro, you know from Budget Committee we have been urging some reforms in this program for some time.  The regulations have not been touched in twenty-five years, for example.  So, there’s clearly some modernizing and updating that needs to be done.


However, there’s also great risk, and I think just from hearing this testimony so far, you can draw your conclusions about some of those areas.  I’ve provided you a handout that begins to lay out our policy recommendations on some areas where risk might occur and where we might have some solutions.


Our concern is to retain the integrity of this model which has worked well for twenty-five years, despite the issues around growth and new providers:  perhaps not coming into the system as well trained as they should be.  The model works, and we have thousands and thousands of families across the state that will attest to that.  We do keep people out of hospitals and nursing homes, and I have some data that shows that, and I’d be happy to share that with you.  I have a little fact sheet here that I can hand out in a few moments.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  The sergeant will distribute it for you.


MS. MISSAELIDES:  So, our concern again is that we have an orderly transition, I think, to illustrate again the areas that need to be touched on to conform this program to the new federal requirements.  I was alarmed to hear Mr. Rosenstein’s comment today about 40 percent of participants would be kicked out of service under the waiver.  I had not heard that statistic before.  I think it just further underscores the risks involved here if we don’t make this transition happen in an orderly way, in a way that makes sense for the participants and families and providers that are providing the service, and that systems from the state on down to the provider, to the beneficiary, are aligned.  


And as I said, I can’t stress enough—every state system, every system at the operational level, is going to be touched by this redesign, from computer systems to paperwork, to how our staff document, to state oversight.  It’s a huge undertaking.


So, our first concern and question, I guess, would be relative to Ms. Ortiz’s questioning around the timeline after twenty-five years to convert a program of this magnitude at this time, and six months seems to me a bit ambitious and I think carries great risk, as I’ve said.


We also have some questions about the 1915(c) waiver.  We’ve been quickly trying to educate ourselves.  We wonder why an 1115 waiver, which is the waiver that was just submitted for the IHSS Residual Program, and also for the Medi-Cal redesign—the “superwaiver,” as we call it—is an 1115.  We’re not sure why that would not be perhaps a more appropriate waiver for us which I believe gives some more flexibility and has some research and demonstration elements to it, which I think would also help the state in promoting its future planning efforts around long-term care, integrated long-term care, and Olmstead and so on.


So, that’s our first major area.


If you’re referring to the handout, I’d like to just focus, I think, on statute and regulations and touch on a couple of other areas.


We have made one pass through the statutes, and our statutes are divided into licensing, statutes that are health and safety, and W&I Code statutes that govern the Medi-Cal certification.  To be a provider today, you have to be both licensed by Health Services and certified as a Medi-Cal provider.  So, we have parallel statute.  We’ve made one pass through statutes right now, and we believe that the way we would recommend handling statutory reform—contrary to, at least, earlier trailer bill language I saw from Mr. Rosenstein which would suggest repealing statute or having it not be operational—is retain licensing; that that should be outside of the waiver.  Make some changes to licensing to conform whatever is going to be needed for waiver requirements, and add some additional statutory language in the appropriate section that would have to do with legislative intent as we undergo this change—what would be your intent.  Waiver criteria.  I think we need to have a framework for what this waiver will look like in terms of your policy goals and then a report back to the Legislature with certain findings so that you can monitor, how did this transition occur?  Were the expectations that we had in the assumptions going in going to be played out in terms of outcomes?


There’s going to need to be statewide training for providers and for Department of Health and Aging staff to implement these new systems.  Treatment authorization will be changed.  As you heard, eligibility/plans of care will be changed.  I mean, there’s just a huge amount of work related to all of that.  


With regulations there’s going to need to be some decision made about, do we retain current regulations or abandon them?  At least our initial recommendation is, again, we need to retain licensing, maybe make some changes.  You might want to instruct an amendment to those with a date-certain to conform again with our timeline.  And the Medi-Cal certification regulations, we believe, could potentially be repealed without great risk.  But then, you need to understand that all of the Medi-Cal certification requirements would then be contained in a contract between the Department of Health and CMS.  So, you would lose your statutory oversight over that piece of the program.


A moratorium is an area that will be discussed in Budget Committee, I believe, on the 21st, Mr. Chesbro, or Saturday, and we have again capitulated to the fact that there will need to be a moratorium.  There’s going to be some implementation issues there and transitions around that, so I won’t take up your time today on that issue.


Turning to the last page, I don’t need to go into these today for you, but again, you just need to understand eligibility, prior authorization, audits, and investigations will be touched.  And then, how does this waiver interact today and in the future with other reform activities in Medi-Cal?  Again, IHSS; the Medi-Cal redesign.  There’s the residual program waiver and integration, and now Senator Vasconcellos has introduced a Medicare 222 waiver bill.  So, we have a lot of activity and reform.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  In a very short period of time.


MS. MISSAELIDES:  Right.  So, we need to bear that in mind as you develop policy around Adult Day Health Care.  We want to be sure that it’s going to be fitting into your future direction around the larger picture.


So, let me stop there.  Those, I think, illustrate the complexity of what we’re dealing with.  This is a very scary time for providers and families, as you can imagine, but we are committed to putting our small but mighty resources into whatever it takes to make this be a successful transition.


I do have a provider with me—my past president—if you have any questions that she can answer better than I.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Well, let’s ask her to come forward.


MS. MISSAELIDES:  And that’s Cordula Dick-Muehlke.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I hope, Ms. Daley, you’re getting a sense of why that timeline that is being imposed upon us may be problematic for reasons unrelated to us not wanting to move forward with this.  So, I hope there’s going to be some willingness to go back and say, We need to give more time.


MS. DALEY:  I can’t commit one way or the other today, but we do need to talk to the state and find out what the problems are, how far they’re moving, how quickly they’re moving.  Those are the things that we just need to discuss.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  And that’s fair.  This is huge.


Before we hear from your provider—Mr. Rosenstein, I believe we’re a little bit behind the timeline for our Medi-Cal redesign.  Any sense of when that window is that’s going to be shoe-horned?  You know, the cliff that we’re going to fall off real soon on the waiver expectations.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Actually, we briefed leg staff, I believe it was yesterday, on the overall plan.  I’d be happy to take a couple of minutes afterwards to talk to you about it.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Certainly.  But it is another variable that may be out of our. . . . I mean, I just really want to highlight that because we’re doing a lot in a very short period of time here in California, and we want to do it well.  And then, we’re facing this potential loss of revenue.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Can I ask Ms. Daley a question?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Absolutely.  I was going to finish . . . 


SENATOR CHESBRO:  I can hold off.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No, go ahead.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Well, it’s really easy in a situation like this to get focused in on all the mechanics and the schedule and all of this and sort of lose track of the forest for the trees.  I just want to ask Ms. Daley if she can tell us whether or not the backdrop of Olmstead and the role that this program plays in both avoiding institutionalization and hopefully helping people to move out of institutions in some cases plays a role.  Is this strictly a legalistic kind of, Gee, we checked the criteria and you don’t meet it, or is that question actually being asked:  How do these services play a role in carrying out the supreme court mandated steps towards helping people maintain their independence?

MS. DALEY:  Oh, it absolutely plays a role.  We do want to keep people out of institutions, and the HCBS waiver is one of the primary ways of doing it.  We have come out with policy to make it easier for people to stay in the community.  Yes, it does play a role in this, and we do want to see it continue.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  And yet, aren’t we hearing here today that this process and procedure may put some of that at risk?


MS. DALEY:  No, I don’t believe so because everybody who’s eligible for an HCBS waiver meets the level of care needed for an institution, and the 40 percent who might not be able to meet that level of care would not be admitted to an institution.  Their condition isn’t sufficient.  By doing a waiver, these people could get even more support to stay out of an institution rather than just going to the Adult Day Health Care center and having that a standalone service which is, under the state plan, a standalone service now.  These people could be getting personal care.  They could be getting respite care—the family.  They could be getting all kinds of additional services that would help them stay out of the institution.  By going through the HCBS waiver route, there’s a lot more flexibility to help them more.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Other questions?


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Well, certainly it’d be nice to hear—and I know you wanted to get to the provider—but it’d be nice to hear the provider perspective on that question and a response.


DR. CORDULA DICK-MUEHLKE:  I have, actually, a number of things that I’d like to address that have come up here.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Would you identify yourself?


DR. DICK-MUEHLKE:  Excuse me.  I’m Dr. Cordula Dick-Muehlke, executive director at Adult Day Services of Orange County in Huntington Beach.  We’re an Adult Day Health Care center and Alzheimer’s Day Care Resource Center.


There’s a number of things that I want to address.  Number one, I’m very astounded by the fact that the criteria for Adult Day Health Care would be that a person would be within one month of institutionalization.  If a goal of a program is to prevent institutionalization, you’re going to have to capture people earlier than just one month prior to institutionalization.  We need to recognize that, and we need to do something to change that particular criteria.  Otherwise, we’re really going to defeat the purpose of this program.


I would also ask respectfully, Ms. Daley—and it may be my misunderstanding; I’m pretty naïve about waivers—but it’s my understanding that if Adult Day Health Care is, for example, under a 1915(c) waiver and then another supportive service like MSSP is part of a different waiver, then individuals would actually have difficulty receiving and accessing services that are via those different waivers and that that would be difficult to do.  So, I think your claim that participants could get all these services that are going to help them stay out of institutions is, based on my understanding, not a correct statement.


I’d like to go back and also address the question that you raised earlier when Dr. Wilber was up here.  There’s a couple of things that came up.


First of all, you asked about the need for Adult Day Health Care in the State of California, and I would encourage you to get the data from the California Association of Adult Day Services that’s available on that.  I’m not prepared to speak to that today, but I would hope that the committee would ask for that.


Secondly, there was a question about the rate of growth in older adults versus the rate of growth in Adult Day Health Care.  In your report that question is answered partially by stating that there’s been a 17 percent rate of growth in older adults across the State of California.  It doesn’t address the L.A. question, but at least it does address the statewide growth as opposed to the growth in Adult Day Health Care services.  


But more importantly, I wanted to answer the question about how does the unbundling of the rate affect access to care?  I think there’s a really big risk here, and I’m speaking as a provider who serves primarily people with moderate to severe dementia that have difficult behavioral problems.  There has been discussion about breaking the rate down into a bundled, unskilled rate and then having the skilled services as add-ons.  I think we need to recognize that people with Alzheimer’s disease who are at risk for institutionalization need a high level of unskilled services and may not need as many skilled services, but you’re going to disincentivize providers from providing care to those individuals by the way you unbundle the rate.


So, those are some of the key points that I wanted to bring to the committee’s attention based on what’s been discussed so far.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Thank you.


DR. DICK-MUEHLKE:  I know you were busy, and I don’t know if you heard what I said, but I hope that you’ll be able to get the transcript about and your questions about the unbundling of the rate.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I did.  I’ve got some family things going on here.  I apologize.


DR. DICK-MUEHLKE:  No, no, no.  I just wanted to make sure.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I know that there’s a lot of discussions going on, and I’m glad to hear that Ms. Missaelides is going to be a part of the administration and has been very gracious, but also that Ms. Daley is going to allow us to begin to have the kind of communication that’s essential to answer that question and many others and just try to get through this.


DR. DICK-MUEHLKE:  Right.  Could I say one more thing?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Certainly.


DR. DICK-MUEHLKE:  I just think that, from your perspective, from the federal perspective, you’re wanting to bring the program in line with what you consider the appropriate rules are for that program, but you have to look at the type of timeline that you’re trying to impose and the negative impact that’s going to have if the waiver gets done the wrong way.  That’s the bottom line.  I mean, are we going to stay participant- and person-focused and client-focused?  Are we going to get focused on meeting a federal requirement within a certain timeline and really messing this program up?


SENATOR ORTIZ:  Rather than speak to the . . . 


DR. DICK-MUEHLKE:  I know, I’m sorry.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  You should probably address the committee, but I think they’re very valuable comments, and they’re not unlike what we have been saying.  I think the work is going to continue after this committee hearing, but I appreciate you, really.


DR. DICK-MUEHLKE:  I obviously have strong feelings about this.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  No, of course.  We all do.


MS. MISSAELIDES:  Senator, in response to your question also about the other states, because I had done research on the five other states that do include Adult Day Health Care as an optional benefit—and I know that this probably is not relevant to CMS—but just to answer your question, I have a chart here that I’ve prepared that does describe the services they include in their bundled rate.  There are unskilled services currently being provided in other states in Adult Day Health Care as an optional benefit.


Thank you.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  I was going to make an additional comment that I think probably the policy chair wants to hear as well.


It occurs to me that from the standpoint of the complexity of this and the time and care that should go into it, that rather than acceding to the pressures of the budget schedule here and trying to rush things, that a policy bill is probably the right way to do this rather than trying to jam it in into the very real pressure we feel to have a budget on time, or soon thereafter, and the many other issues that we’ll be dealing with in the budget process simultaneously; which, of course, everybody from Stan to Diane to me, everybody could be working on twenty things at once.  So, it does seem like we ought to consider the policy bill process.


SENATOR ORTIZ:  I’m trying to determine whether I can leave the committee.  I’ve got a commitment that’s come up that is very impending.  So, maybe sergeants can determine whether there are any other members.  I don’t want to require Senators Kuehl and Chesbro who have other commitments around 3:30—at least Senator Kuehl does—and I don’t want to assume that Senator Chesbro has to stay here.  But I’d like to find out whether we can get someone else to try to chair the committee as I take care of some things that are important right now.  So, give us a couple of moments.  


We do have another panel, and many of you who are on that third panel, of course, are here at the table right now.  So, Stan, don’t go too far away.  Let me invite Ms. Arend to come forward.  Ms. Ducay.  Gosh, I missed Shawn Martin from LAO.  Joyce Fukui.  And Lydia, you can stay as well.  I really had hoped to hear from the auditor, but you’re part of the panel.  Please come forward, Ms. Howle, and join us, and let’s see whether we can at least commence this part of this.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Let’s try to do the remaining panel in half an hour.


SENATOR KUEHL:  We’ll do it.


[Change of chairmanship]


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Okay.  Well, we’re now on a slightly sped-up timeline, so we’re going to try to do this panel in half an hour, which means I’m going to have to ask you all to be briefer than you had probably intended to be.  Three minutes would probably be really helpful and give us some hope of meeting that timeline.


Let’s begin with the program history and current situation, and that presentation was going to be from Shawn Martin of the LAO.


MR. SHAWN MARTIN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Shawn Martin.


Since you asked me to be brief, I wanted to let you know I’m speaking from a handout.  I’m going to speak on the historical perspective and also touch on some of the growth trends.


The Adult Day Health centers model of care emerged in the 1970s in response to concerns about lack of community-based alternatives to nursing homes.  In 1975, the State Legislature authorized Adult Day Health Care pilot projects, and five pilots were established.  In 1978, legislation made the Adult Day Health enters a Medi-Cal benefit and established a rate-setting mechanism.  At that time, Adult Day Health centers were limited to public or private nonprofit agencies.  Then, in 1995, new legislation eliminated licensure restrictions and allowed individuals and for-profit entities to be licensed and certified as Adult Day Health center providers.  Since that time, expansion in the number of for-profit Adult Day Health centers has significantly outpaced expansion in the number of nonprofits.


I’m going to skip a couple of pages, to page 3, and talk about expenditure and caseload trends.


The Adult Day Health Care program is under the Medicaid law to be a so-called optional benefit that states are not obligated to provide.  Adult Day Health center providers are currently reimbursed under a bundled rate, as was said before.


I’m going to go down to look at Figure 1 on page 3, showing the figure between 1999/2000 and 2002/2003.  The total spending in the program grew from $81 million to about $238 million, or about a 195 percent increase.  The average annual year-to-year increase was approximately 43 percent.


And then moving on to page 4, shown in Figure 2, over the same time period, the number of Adult Day Health centers in Los Angeles County increased from 67 to 164, or by 145 percent.  During the same period, the number of Adult Day Health centers in other counties increased from 90 to 130, or by 44 percent.  At the close of 2002/2003, about 56 percent of the total number of Adult Day Health centers were located in Los Angeles County, while only about 38 percent of Medi-Cal beneficiaries reside in Los Angeles County.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  It seems like there’s a couple of ways that you could look at that.  I’d be interested if you have any data or observations on this, but you can look at it that there’s a large need out there that the available providers have only partially met, and one part of the state has developed more quickly to respond to that need; or you could view it, I think, the way the administration and others have viewed it:  with some alarm; that there’s something going on there relative to folks figuring out how to game[?] the system.  


So, do you have any kind of observations?  You don’t have to have one.  I know the LAO likes to base things on data, but I just wanted to see if you had.


MR. MARTIN:  I guess one observation I might have is that in other areas in this state, they may be underserved.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  That’s another way of putting my point.


MR. MARTIN:  Yes.  


SENATOR CHESBRO:  And so, it’s not necessarily—and I’m not characterizing it because I don’t know—but it’s not necessarily the fact that it’s some sort of inappropriate expansion or activity.  It could be, actually, some untapped need that hasn’t been met elsewhere in the state; that these expansions are, in fact, occurring to need[?].  Whether we can afford them or not is another story.


MR. MARTIN:  One piece of data that we looked at is the fact that since 1995, when they allowed the for-profit Adult Day Health centers, we’ve seen a rapid expansion, and we’ve seen it mainly in the for-profit area, not in the not-for-profit area, which would indicate, if you believe in market forces, that there’s some money to be made here.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Okay.  Thank you.


MR. MARTIN:  And then, moving on to the last page, page 5—in May 2003, the governor’s revised budget plan proposed to place an immediate moratorium on certification of new Adult Day Health centers and to unbundle the overall rate of reimbursement paid to Adult Day Health centers, to pay separately for therapy and transportation.  The administration believed that this would save $9.8 million in state funds in 2003-04.  The Legislature rejected that and instead enacted Senate Bill 428 by Perata.  The governor then vetoed that.  This current budget cycle is essentially proposing what they proposed before, and as we’ve heard, there’s been a change in the landscape regarding the waiver.  


I’m going to conclude because I see they’re showing the sign to conclude, and I’ve gone through my handout about as quickly as possible.


Do you have any further questions?


SENATOR CHESBRO:  No.  Thank you for your work on this and for being brief.


We’re going to go to program efficiency and begin, again, with Stan, representing the department.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  I’ll try to make my comments brief.  I’ve been asked to talk about our prior authorization process.


Real brief background:  Currently, we have 265 staff in our various field offices throughout the state processing all prior authorization requests.  That is down about 30½ staff due to various budget cuts that we’ve encountered.  As the chair knows, we have a request for 36 additional staff of the BCP that’s being considered, and we are undergoing a process to automate our field offices to a greater extent and automate the criteria in which we make the determinations.  With that automation, I don’t foresee that Adult Day Health Care would actually be part of that, given we have a very high denial rate—or, actually, modification rate.  


To give you some statistics:  in 2001, we received about 50,000 requests for prior authorization for Adult Day Health.  We approved 55 percent of them.  We modified 30 percent of the requests we got, and we denied a very small part—2.47 percent.


In 2003, the 49,000 increased to 87,000 requests for prior authorization.  We approved slightly less of those:  52 percent.  We modified 37 percent, and we denied a very small percentage of 2.72 percent.  This is a very low approval rate based upon the other services that we process, and I’ll tell you why in just a second.


We do process these prior authorizations right now in about five to seven days.  The processing is difficult because, as was mentioned before, the criteria that we use is old and is very ill-defined.  So, it’s certainly in some need of beefing up.


In L.A. County, the Southern California, Los Angeles office, we attempt to do an onsite review when we have staff resources to make sure that indeed these services are needed.  In L.A., our field office has a unit solely dedicated.


I wanted to talk about why the high modification rate.  Virtually, every request for prior authorization we get requests the full five days—five days a week—of services.  We don’t often see the medical justification for more than two or three days, so we approve the request with a modified smaller amount of days.  The problem we’re seeing is there are plans, especially in the Los Angeles area, where an individual will own several Adult Day Health Care centers, and we’ll authorize two to three days a week.  They will bill five days a week, and then, very shortly thereafter, we’ll get a request from another Adult Day Health Care center that is owned by the same owner asking for the balance of those services.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  What do you mean “asking for the balance of those services”?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Well, we will authorize, say, two services a week, so that’s twenty services a month.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  So, for the same individual, they’re trying to get two days in one location and three days in another?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Well, they’ll bill five days.  They’ll be authorized two days in one location, so twenty services.  They’ll bill the first two weeks in that one location, depleting the entire twenty services.  Then they’ll request services from another one of their facilities to get the rest of the month.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  It seems like that’s a real problem; although, it’s hard to understand how a moratorium statewide addresses that problem.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  The moratorium statewide doesn’t address the problem per se, other than our concern about who the expansion is out there.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  We don’t have time to go into this in great detail—this isn’t the budget subcommittee and we’re not all going to sit here forever, and we’ve probably already had this conversation in the budget subcommittee—but is there, in terms of your approval process. . . . I mean, you can catch that and not allow it, right?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  We’re doing two things now.  One, we’re referring them to—and Diana Ducay will talk about this—we refer those cases to Audits and Investigations, and she’ll talk about what they do with those cases.  The second thing is, we’re changing our claims processing system to prevent this up front.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  You should be able, if it’s the same individual, to say, The authorization’s for the individual, not for the facility, so you can’t go get more service in another facility.  That would be as though you were getting more Medi-Cal service by going to multiple providers or something.  It doesn’t make any sense.


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Yes.  I use this to illustrate a problem we were working on:  a two-fold solution on a post-payment basis as well as a pre-payment basis.


With that, I’ll open it up for any questions on our prior authorizations process.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  I think we’ll keep it moving and go to the other DHS folks.  


Ms. Arend?


MS. DENISE AREND:  Hi.  I’m Denise Arend.  I’m with the licensing program, and I’ll be very brief since a lot of what was discussed earlier is included in what I prepared.


We have a great deal of challenges in our program to meet all of the licensing needs among all of the facility providers who want to be licensed to provide healthcare services.  In the ADHC world, we have approximately 140 pending applications statewide; the majority of which are down in Southern California.  It has been a juggling act on the part of our district offices to do the licensing; to try to complete these licensing surveys.  We are currently averaging about five or seven a quarter that we’re able to do; and so, you can just imagine the time it’s going to take us to catch up on that backlog.


We are faced with doing our priority work under our federal grant authorization, and that includes doing the recertification surveys that we’re obligated to do under the federal program.


I think that’s the extent of, I guess, our contribution to trying to solve this problem, is to continue to be creative in how we’re able to juggle that workload at the local level.  We work closely with the Department of Aging.  They have the same kinds of issues with their staffing cutbacks as we do, and the pipeline is pretty full for both of us right now.


So, just to be real clear and brief.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Thank you.


Ms. Ducay?


MS. DIANA DUCAY:  I’m Diana Ducay, deputy director for Audits and Investigations at Department of Health Services.


Between January 2002 and May of ’04, Audits and Investigations has initiated 134 cases on complaints related to Adult Day Health Care.  Of the 134 cases, 71 are currently open and active, and 63 have been closed.  Based on these investigations, we have pursued one permissive suspension.  We have initiated 8 payment withholds and temporary suspensions, 31 referrals to the Department of Justice, 40 overpayment demands for the types of things that Stan talked about related to the TARs, where they were authorized for two and billing for five, and those totaled $626,000, of which we have collected $193,000 so far.  


We’ve also been working with our fiscal intermediary to go beyond our field audits that we’ve done so far and looking within the payment system to see how many other claims are out there we didn’t pick up during the field reviews.  And then we also initiated three special claims reviews.  This takes them off of electronic billing, and then they have to justify the services that are billed.


Some examples of the types of things we are seeing, I think a lot of it’s already been covered:  submitting claims for days that the participants are not at the facility.  Many times we’ve seen where they’re not even in the country.  They’re out visiting relatives outside the United States.  Falsifying the medical records and attendance records to indicate that the participants were there and actually receiving some of the medical services that were in their treatment plans.  Submitting, like I said, more days than they’re authorized in their TARs.  And we also have had cases where they’re forging the signatures of the medical professionals on the treatment plans to justify the TARs through the field offices.  So, those are the key types of things that we’re seeing at the centers.  And like with the other fraud, these types of problems are focused in the L.A. area.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Well, it does seem like those activities are the kinds of focused activities that should be applied to take care of the problem as opposed to sort of the big broad brush that just says, well, the program’s out of control so we need to contain the costs.


Thank you.


Next I’m going to call on Joyce Fukui, and I hope I pronounced that one right.


MS. JOYCE FUKUI:  Yes, you did.  Thank you.  Joyce Fukui, program deputy, Department of Aging.  I will also be very brief.


Many of the points I was prepared to make have been touched on, but I would just like to add in terms of the discussion item on program efficiency.  My own definition of that has been touched on by prior speakers, but getting the right service, the right person, at the right time.  The tools that we have to do that in an ever-changing world—and it will become increasingly refined in our waiver world—are:  clear assessment tools; communication across programs, departments, units within programs; and vigilant data-sharing in terms of enforcement.  All of these take, I think, a great deal of work and persistence.  


I would like to just echo previous comments about conversion of the ADHC program from a state plan service into a waiver service and the issues of persons being at risk of nursing home placement, whether it’s thirty days or whether it’s short-term, imminent placement.  That is going to be a challenge to design those tools to make sure that we have consistent enforcement and to also make sure that we have those types of judgments across programs that are consistent and send a clear standard out into the community.  One of the problems that’s already been touched on is the regulations being sorely out of date with vague standards and with many good, well-intentioned people.  If you don’t have the regulations that are clear and consistent, you’re going to be at a loss from the beginning.  


So, I hope to take this opportunity, as part of the waiver development, to really strengthen those standards and to, as Lydia also mentioned, educate the provider community and talk about enforcement across departments.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Okay.  How is the Department of Aging and the Department of Health Services working together on addressing this?  Are you coordinating?


MS. FUKUI:  Very, very closely.  We have meetings, several meetings, a week, including conference calls with CMS.  We’re posing the questions.  It does feel like we are running a race and would like to slow down a bit to concur that these issues need a high degree of thought.  We don’t want to make wrong policy calls.  However, DHS and CDA, as well as the association and CMS, are meeting very, very regularly to discuss the issues.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Okay, thank you.


Lydia Missaelides?


MS. MISSAELIDES:  I didn’t prepare comments because I really wanted to be able to respond to the speakers before me.  I have just a couple of comments to make.


I think the description of some of the problems that have been identified in the program are not problems that are unknown to us.  They’ve been known for many years.  So, I think we’ve suffered from a lag time and certainly some oversight neglect in terms of oversight, in my personal view and opinion.  
And I think that part of the problem is going to be addressed by Ms. Howle’s comments relative to coordination between departments.


One of the recommendations that I would like to make, for example, as we move forward now prospectively so that we’re not having the same conversation with these same people around the table in three years about fraud and abuse, is that we’d like to see a strong, targeted fraud and abuse commitment in this program.  I think the fact that it has taken so long to have any actions and any consequences against providers who may be out there that really are the bad actors—not the providers that maybe are not as knowledgeable as they should be when they come in or haven’t had training or are kind of learning as they go, but the really bad actors—we feel that there has not been enough coordination between all of the responsible parties.  


So, it seems to me that if there could be a liaison type of a person who could work with focusing on just Adult Day Health Care and interact between Department of Aging, that has some responsibility with certification, Licensing, that has some responsibility, Department of Justice, that has responsibility, and Audits and Investigations.  Every component is looking at one little piece of the elephant, and what I haven’t seen, unless I’m missing something, is a more interdisciplinary approach.  I’m not understanding why it’s so difficult to find these cases where very blatant, it seems to me, abuses are occurring.  So, that would be one strong recommendation that I’d like to make.


And relative to the prior authorization system, I know that that is going to change.  I’d like to recommend that we do look at centralizing prior authorizations in one location so that we can have some more consistency as we move forward again because of the great risk of that determination of eligibility and services that people are going to receive.


So, I think those are just the two major things I’d like to say.


Thank you.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  I thank you very much.


Next I’d like to welcome the state auditor, Elaine Howle.


MS. ELAINE HOWLE:  Thank you, Senator.  I apologize for having my back to you, but I’ll try and go through my comments relatively quickly.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  I’ll watch you on the TV screen up there.


MS. HOWLE:  I don’t want to look up there and see myself.  That’s the scary part about sitting on this side of the table.


We were actually asked by the Joint Legislative Audit Committee last year to look at six different programs that provide different types of care—long-term care programs—to determine whether or not there was a way to streamline some of those programs.  The Adult Day Health Care program was one of the six programs that we were asked to take a look at, and we certainly did see duplication of oversight in this particular area by the Department of Aging as well as the Department of Health Services.  Department of Aging monitors these centers for compliance with state certification regulations; whereas, Health Services, as Ms. Arend indicated, looks at healthcare centers for compliance with licensing regulations.  So, there is duplication.  There are different site visits that are occurring at the providers which causes an additional burden to the providers.


We also looked at regulations for both licensing and certification to see if there was duplication in that area, and we did find that there are numerous regulations that are duplicative related to Aging and what their responsibilities are and related to Department of Health Services in their licensing and certification.


Another area of duplication is related to the TARs where Medi-Cal field offices may conduct their separate onsite visits to look for treatment authorization approvals.  So, another area of duplication that we think could be looked at.


The final area that we looked at as far as this audit with respect to Adult Day Health Care was prior to September of 2000, there was a combined effort by the two departments—Aging and Health Services—to combine their licensing and certification functions.  They’ve gotten away from that, and we think we need to take another look at that.


So, quickly, the three recommendations that we have in this particular area related to Adult Day Health Care oversight is to minimize duplication of effort.  Health Services needs to incorporate a review of certification requirements into their licensing reviews which may include participation from Aging.  So, have a representative from Aging participate but have the one onsite review looking at licensing and certification requirements.  


And then, Health Services needs to develop some protocols for this single review.  But in the meantime, let’s conduct those joint onsite reviews.  Lessen the burden on the providers.  Take a look at the licensing and certification regulations; see if there is a way to combine those regulations so we eliminate some of the duplication there.  


And then also, the Medi-Cal field offices that are conducting the TARs reviews, Health Services can notify these Medi-Cal field offices that, We’re intending to go out and do a licensing and certification review.  If there’s someone that can attend to conduct the TAR review, we can get it all done in one particular site visit, rather than having three different entities coming into the provider at different points in time.


Those were the three main recommendations that we had relative to Adult Day Health Care centers and oversight provided by the state.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Okay.  Now, I have under “System Oversight” also Stan Rosenstein and Joyce Fukui listed.  We have a couple more minutes here.  Do you want to wind up with some additional comments on system oversight?


MR. ROSENSTEIN:  Just a comment on the TARs—that we agreed with the state auditor.


MS. AREND:  And Licensing, obviously, is looking at those recommendations as well to see how we can streamline things.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Okay.


MS. FUKUI:  And I would just like to add that although the BSA audit was performed, found the duplication, acknowledged the out-of-date regulations—and those findings we believe were accurate—in the context of moving to the waiver, we believe that many of those program elements moved into a single standard to be enforced by one entity, and therefore the opportunity exists in the waiver conversion to remove the duplication.


And I would just also like to add that we believe that the California Performance Review will also touch on the area of organizational structures and the BSA’s findings.


SENATOR CHESBRO:  Okay.


Well, let me apologize for this abbreviated, sped-up end of the hearing.  Let me close by saying that this has been very helpful in terms of refreshing the members of the committee and reviewing the very important role that Adult Day Health Care provides in the long-term care continuum in California and also focus on some of the issues associated with the waiver requirement.  


There obviously needs to be more strategic discussion.  I’m not speaking for the chair of this committee, but it does seem to me that buying time by moving into the legislative arena in terms of the waiver process makes a lot more sense, and there’s a lot less pressure and a lot less chance of doing it wrong and a much better chance of getting it right.  That’s just my editorial comment for the moment.  We’re looking forward to, I think, seeing what the governor has to present us tomorrow in the May revise.


Thank you all very much.
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